
    

 

AGENDA ITEM IV.1a
Regular Board Meeting 

Approved Minutes
December 15, 2014

 
District Attendees 
Lonny Gossett 
Michael McRae 
Randy Marx 
Misha Sarkovich 
Tom Tafoya 
Dave Underwood 
Tom R. Gray 
Michael Nisenboym 
Chi Ha-Ly  
 

Board President  
Board Vice President  
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member  
Board Member 
General Manager 
Operations Manager 
Finance Manager 
 

Other Attendees  
Keith Durkin   SJWD Assistant General Manager  
 
 
Absent 
   
 
   
     
AGENDA ITEMS 

 
I.  Call to Order 

President Gossett called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

II. Public Comment 
 None.  
 
 General Manager Gray recognized President Gossett thanking him for his years of 

service and for serving as Board President. 
 

III. Oath of Office and Election of Officers 
1. Oath of Office for Dave Underwood as Director of FOWD Division 1 

 General Manager Gray administered the oath of office to Director Dave 
Underwood. 

 
2. Oath of Office for Mike McRae as Director of FOWD Division 2 

 General Manager Gray administered the oath of office to Director Mike McRae. 



Page 2 of 12 

3. Oath of Office for Tom Tafoya as Director of FOWD Division 3 
 General Manager Gray administered the oath of office to Director Tom Tafoya. 

 
4. Discussion and possible action on selection of Board President and Vice President for 

2015 
 
Director Sarkovich motioned to nominate Director McRae for Board President. 
Director Underwood seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes:   Marx – aye, McRae – aye, Sarkovich – 
aye, Tafoya– aye, and Underwood – aye. 

Director Marx motioned to nominate Director Underwood for Board Vice President. 
Director Sarkovich seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes:   Marx – aye, McRae – aye, Sarkovich – 
aye, Tafoya– aye, and Underwood – aye. 

 
IV. Consent Calendar  
  
 The following consent calendar items were considered and acted upon as follows: 
  

1. Approval of minutes 
a. Regular Board Meeting of November 10, 2014 

2. Accept and file Treasurer’s Report for the month of November, 2014 
3. Accept and file Investment Report for the month of October, 2014 
4. Accept and file Financial Expense Report for the month of November, 2014 
5. Approval of Warrants 
6. Approval of Cal-Card Statements for the month of November, 2014 
7. Approval of Monthly Board Expense Report for the month of November, 2014 
 

Director Marx moved to approve the consent calendar. 

Director Sarkovich seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes:   Marx – aye, McRae – aye, Sarkovich – 
aye, Tafoya– aye, and Underwood – aye. 

 

V. Presentation & Correspondence 
 

1. FOWD receives “President’s Special Recognition Award” from ACWA JPIA 

 General Manager Gray stated FOWD has been recognized by ACWA JPIA for 
the low claim loss ratio on the insurance programs. 

 



Page 3 of 12 

2. FOWD index of elected officials update 

 General Manager Gray reported that he submitted to the Sacramento County 
current Directors information for 2015.  The response is included in the Board 
packet.    

3. Local media report on rate hikes and salaries 

 General Manager Gray stated this is information only - no need for discussion. 

4. Correspondence dated December 1, 2014 from CHWD to SJWD on the 
proposed project to pump groundwater from SSWD to the SJWD service area 

 General Manager Gray stated that the correspondence from CHWD to SJWD 
includes similar questions on the Pump Back Project that the FOWD Board has 
asked previously; SJWD has committed to provide a written response in a timely 
manner. 

 Director Sarkovich inquired whether all the agreements the District has with 
SJWD will be voided with the Pump Back Project taking place. 

 General Manager Gray stated that the agreements need to be revisited not voided.  
He emphasized that the Pump Back Project is a new water supply source which 
provides alternatives to all individual agencies for redundant backup water 
supply. 

 Director Sarkovich asked SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin to confirm 
General Manager Gray’s response. 

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin agreed with General Manager Gray’s 
response.  He stated that even with the Pump Back Facility, FOWD and CHWD 
groundwater wells, there would not be enough surface water if there is significant 
cut back.  There needs to be discussions on the management of the water 
portfolio. 

 Director McRae asked SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin what the 
greatest obstacles for the Pump Back Project were related to the letter from 
CHWD. 

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin stated every question Mr. Churchill 
brought up in that letter deserves a response and needs to be addressed.  He stated 
SJWD is working on the response and will make sure that the FOWD Board gets 
a copy.  He believes from all the agencies perspectives, operational considerations 
are the greatest obstacles; that the agencies need to work together.   

 General Manager Gray stated staff can make this project work; however, at a 
policy level, this is water reliability.  Is it retail or wholesale’s responsibility for 
water reliability?  As staff he would like to know the answer and then he can 
embrace and collaborate on this project. 



Page 4 of 12 

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin stated FOWD and CHWD are fortunate 
to have groundwater wells and can provide a higher level of reliability and 
redundancy to their customers; however, other agencies such as City of Folsom 
(N. of American River), Orangevale and SJWD-Retail cannot provide water 
reliability.  Mr. Durkin stated the SJWD Board made it clear that SJWD 
Wholesale has the responsibility of water reliability to the wholesale agencies.  
He stated FOWD could say that it does not need surface water and choose not to 
rely on SJWD.  He stated that SJWD is looking for alternative water supplies, 
particularly the Pump Back Project.  He stated that the Pump Back Project is in 
lieu of FOWD and CHWD maintaining the existing groundwater wells including 
Madison Well (FOWD) and Skycrest Well (CHWD) projects.  The Pump Back 
Project would bring everybody to equal footing in terms of a redundant and 
reliable water supply.  If FOWD and CHWD were to buy into the Pump Back 
Project, it would reduce redundancy and the other agencies would become less 
equal in water reliability.  

 General Manager Gray stated that SJWD staff has been instructed to provide 
water reliability to all wholesale agencies.  FOWD Board indicated that it is the 
District’s responsibility to provide water reliability.  General Manager Gray stated 
until this issue is hashed out at the Board level, it puts staff at odds. 

 Director Sarkovich inquired on the status on FOWD’s request to obtain a firm 
contract with SJWD with firm water delivery.  General Manager Gray stated that 
they recently had a workshop on this topic but no position has been taken; it is 
still in progress. 

  SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin stated that Mr. Bob Reed presented the 
final financial plan a few weeks ago.  One of the items included in the work effort 
was the “Take or Pay” as an alternative to the contract with the Wholesale 
agencies.  As part of that, Mr. Reed met with all the General Managers and 
developed a work product and presented it to the SJWD Board.  Even before it 
got presented it to the SJWD Board, there was a consensus among the agencies 
that the advantages are not there for the “Take or Pay” contract.  He indicated it 
would not be beneficial to pay and not use the water.  Instead of “Take or Pay,” 
water allowances would work better where the agencies would not make a 
commitment to pay for it and still be guaranteed a fixed amount of allocation.  He 
stated FOWD, CHWD and Orangevale all wanted assurances that the surface 
water supply they have been able to receive is not going to get diminished as a 
result of the discussion SJWD is having with SSWD.  He stated the SJWD Board 
approved the financial plan Mr. Reed presented a few weeks ago and directed 
staff to work on the principles that would be put into the wholesale water supply 
agreement to provide water supply assurances for the allowances.  We are going 
to get together with the agencies to work on the allowances.  The allowance may 
be a three year average or past few years plus 10%.    He stated that as the 
discussion with SSWD moves forward, for the water supply assurance, they need 
to incorporate in the water supply agreement or some kind of formal agreement, 
that FOWD is not going to lose some of the benefits of the Pre-1914 water rights.  



Page 5 of 12 

He stated the Pre-1914 water supply comes in at a very low cost compared to the 
CVP or the PCWA contract. 

 General Manager Gray stated that “Take or Pay” was introduced by our Board 
with the objective for firm allocation and it turned out to be better with the group 
suggesting the water allowances. 

 General Manager Gray stated that FOWD is neutral on the SJWD merger with 
SSWD.  It does not endorse or oppose; pending more information at this time 
prior to endorsing.  

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin stated he thought there was a lot of 
effort put forth to communicate on the Pump Back Project. 

 Director Sarkovich asked SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin about the 
allocation toward wholesale agencies should there be a drought and less than 
100% allocation. 

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin stated that the SJWD Board directs 
staff to try to make sure all customers with the SJWD Wholesale water agencies 
have equal amounts of the water supply.  With the Pump Back Project bringing 
everybody to equal footing, as surface water gets cut back, everybody will get cut 
back proportionally.  When summing up groundwater, surface water, plus intertie 
water; all agencies will end up with an equivalent amount of water. 

 Director Sarkovich stated FOWD invested in groundwater wells and now it is 
being penalized with the cut back of surface water. 

 Mr. Gossett stated, as a rate payer, since FOWD has to pay for its own wells, he 
does not think that FOWD should be paying for the Pump Back Project.  

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin stated that at this point SJWD-R, 
Orangevale and the City of Folsom are the only agencies paying for the Pump 
Back Project  He stated originally, all the agencies were going to participate and 
FOWD and CHWD indicated they were not sure they would get benefits from the 
Pump Back Project.  All the costs were assigned prior to SJWD receiving a letter 
asking to buy into the project. 

 General Manager Gray stated initially the Pump Back Project was a project 
between CHWD and SSWD. 

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin stated that General Manager Gray’s 
statement about the project being between CHWD and SSWD originally was not 
true. 

 Director Underwood inquired if SJWD is trying to reach a similar level of service 
that CHWD and FOWD could provide with their wells or are they trying to go 
beyond that? 



Page 6 of 12 

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin stated that SJWD is trying to provide 
equal water to the agencies.  The interties (Pump Back Project) that will provide 
water to the other three agencies include control valves with pressure sustaining 
features that if need be, could be opened up for FOWD and CHWD.  If more 
water supplies are developed, it would be helpful to everybody. 

 General Manager Gray stated that the FOWD Board directed staff to turn on the 
water in cases of emergency; even though there is still no emergency water supply 
agreement as requested. 

 Mr. Gossett thanked SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin for his willingness 
to participate in an open discussion.  He indicated that the Pump Back Project is a 
great thing.  He stated he is concerned with the merger between SJWD and 
SSWD. 

 

VI. Discussion and Action Items: Old Business 

1. Update and discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of November, 
2014  

 General Manager Gray reported that the total 518.03 AC-FT of water demand in 
November was met from 11.1% (57.70 AC-FT) groundwater pumping and 88.9% 
(460.33 AC-FT) surface water provided by SJWD.  The District’s overall 
consumption was 19.5% below the 10-year average with a 35.4% reduction from 
2013 for the month of November.  The total consumption through the first 11 
months of the year was recorded at 9,232.54 AC-FT which is a 21.3% reduction 
from the total consumption through the first ten months of 2013 (11,729.42 AC-
FT).   

2. Update on California Water Bond 

 General Manager Gray provided an overview of Proposition 1 including the 
allocation of the money to water reliability, water recycling, safe drinking water, 
groundwater sustainability, water sheds and flood management, and storage.  He 
stated with the $2.7 billion allocated for storage, the District may consider Gum 
Ranch Reservoir.     

 General Manager Gray suggested putting the water bond information on the 
District’s website. 

 Director McRae directed staff to provide a recommendation of what to put on the 
FOWD website. 

3. Update on the San Juan Water District and Sacramento Suburban Water 
District merger process 

 Director McRae stated that the merger discussion has been going on for a while.  
He perceived the merger as a bill being introduced to the legislators.  FOWD is 



Page 7 of 12 

invited but not an active voting participant.  He stated FOWD has not been shown 
why they should support the merger and are currently not convinced it is a 
positive step for our ratepayers.  He would like SJWD Assistant General Manager 
Durkin to take this back to SJWD General Manager Lorance. 

 Director Marx is concerned with the current contracts FOWD has with SJWD. 

 General Manager Gray stated that the SJWD family should get its house in order 
prior to negotiating with SSWD. 

 Director McRae volunteered to come up with bullet points of what FOWD has to 
lose and what SJWD/SSWD could do to get FOWD behind the merger. 

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin stated that he will carry the message 
back and have a consultant provide a presentation on the merger.  He stated that 
he would like to place communications on top of the list for the New Year.  The 
objective from the merger is SSWD will be dissolved and become part of SJWD.  
There has been a lot of effort to get information out and at lot of effort to get 
comments.  He stated that FOWD would get indirect benefits from the merger.  
There are a lot of opportunities for water supply, there will be revenues to offset 
overall costs and more opportunities to influence legislation.  He stated there will 
be a 2x2 meeting coming up and the Board members are welcome to attend.    

 Director McRae stated that FOWD received the merger information.  He stated 
that the information he received was “this is where we are, this is where we are 
going.”  He would like to get information on why FOWD should get on board, 
and the benefits FOWD will receive.  He stated that he has obtained plenty of 
information and he needs SJWD to sell the idea of the merger. 

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin stated that the Bee article released to 
the local media includes a lot of misinformation in the article.  The article is 
related to SJWD salary, cost of water supply, and how SJWD-W ranked.  He 
indicated that the information is inaccurate.  He mentioned that SJWD General 
Manager Shauna Lorance sent an email to staff and Board Members to provide 
accurate information. 

 General Manager Gray stated that the Board, staff, and any people with an 
interest, were copied on the emails that explained why the Bee article was 
misstated.  He stated that he is not sure if the Board has seen the Bee article and 
he wasn’t even aware of the Board being quoted in the article. 

 Director McRae stated he had seen the Bee article for the first time in the Board 
packet. 

 



Page 8 of 12 

VII. Discussion and Action Items: New Business 

1. Discussion and possible action on appointments to Board committees and as 
FOWD representatives at other organizations 

General Manager Gray emphasized that FOWD does not have Standing Committees at 
this time. 

The following are the Board and Ad Hoc Committee Assignments for 2015. 

 

2015 Board Assignments 

Organization Name Members 

SGA Marx, Underwood 

RWA Marx, Gray, Underwood 

ACWA JPIA Marx 

SJWD Executive Committee Marx, Gray, Underwood 

WFSE Tafoya, Gray 

 

2015  Ad Hoc Committee Assignments 

Committee Name Members 

Budget Sarkovich, Underwood, Gray 

Capital Improvement McRae, Sarkovich, Gray 

Personnel Tafoya, McRae, Gray 

Public Relations Underwood, Tafoya, Gray 

Technical Advisory Marx, McRae, Gray 

Wholesale Water Communications Underwood, Marx 

 
 General Manager Gray stated he will submit Director Underwood’s name as an 

alternate to RWA/SGA. 

2. Discussion and possible action on proposed upgrade of the District computer 
network system 

 General Manager provided an overview of the proposed upgrade of the District 
computer network system.  Detailed analysis of the system requirements, 
solutions and costs were provided to the Board for review. 

 Director McRae stated that this network system upgrade proposal should have 
been advertised and opened to public. 

 General Manager Gray stated that this is specialized work.  The District hired 
consultants to analyze the system, propose solutions and recommend vendors with 
the ability to provide the needed solutions.  



Page 9 of 12 

 After much discussion, the Board felt that the item requires more analysis, and 
more vendors than the two proposed.  The Board deferred the item to the January 
2015 Board meeting. 

3. Discussion and possible action of acceptance of land easements required to 
complete on-site public water system improvements at 11427 Fair Oaks 
Boulevard 

Director McRae motioned to accept proposed land easements required to complete 
on-site public water system improvements at 11427 Fair Oaks Boulevard. 

Director Sarkovich seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes:   Marx – aye, McRae – aye, Sarkovich – 
aye, Tafoya– aye, and Underwood – aye. 

4. Discussion on the recent flooding of the Fair Oaks Water District’s Maintenance 
Building located at 10317 Fair Oaks Boulevard 

 General Manager Gray stated the 10317 Fair Oaks Blvd. building has flooded a 
couple of times during this year due to rainstorms.  He distributed pictures to the 
Board showing the flooded portion of the maintenance building.  He indicated 
that steps were taken to temporarily remedy the situation by remodeling the 
damaged areas.  He mentioned that the planning for the 10317 FOB site is 
included in the 2015 budget.   

5. Discussion and possible action on FOWD joining the ACWA JPIA 
“Commitment to Excellence” program 

 Director McRae inquired if there is cost to the District related to this program. 

 General Manager Gray responded that this is to show that the District endorses 
the program and there is no cost to the District. 

Director Sarkovich motioned to have FOWD join the ACWA JPIA “Commitment to 
Excellence” program. 

Director Underwood seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes:   Marx – aye, McRae – aye, Sarkovich – 
aye, Tafoya– aye, and Underwood – aye. 

 

VIII. Upcoming Events  
 

1. SJWD & SSWD Joint Board Meeting on Merger Issues / December 16, 2014 / 
6:30 PM SSWD 

 Information only. 



Page 10 of 12 

2. SJWD & SSWD Joint Ad Hoc Meeting on Merger Issues / December 18, 2014 / 
10:30 AM SSWD 

 Information only. 

3. Fair Oaks Chamber of Commerce Business Luncheon / December 18, 2014 / 
Fair Oaks Community Club House 

 Information only. 

4. Fair Oaks Water District Annual Holiday Celebration / December 18, 2014 / 
FOWD Board Room 

 Information only. 

 

IX. Representative Reports 
 

1. Sacramento Groundwater Authority (SGA) 
 Director Marx reported on the newly Chromium MCL for drinking water supply 

and its impact on other agencies such as Rio Linda and SSWD.  
 

2. Regional Water Authority (RWA) 
 Director Marx reported on the fee structure. 

 
3. San Juan Family of Agencies Executive Committee 

 No report. 
 

4. Other 
 None. 

 
X. Directors’ Reports & Comments 
 

1. Budget Committee – (Sarkovich, Underwood) 
 No meeting. 

 
2. Technical Advisory Committee – (Marx, McRae) 

 No meeting. 
 

3. Capital Improvement Committee – (McRae, Sarkovich) 
 No meeting. 

 
4. Personnel Committee – (Gossett, McRae) 

 No meeting. 
 

5. Public Relations Committee – (Underwood, Gossett) 
 No meeting. 



Page 11 of 12 

6. Other 

 None.   

 

XI. General Manager’s Report 
 

1. Monthly Maintenance Work Report 

 General Manager Gray stated the Monthly Maintenance Work Report provides an 
overview of the areas, including addresses, employees worked on during the 
month.  

2. Capital Projects Status Report 

 General Manager Gray stated the Capital Projects Status Report provides budget 
versus actual information for each project. 

 Director McRae thanked staff for including the percentage of completion on the 
report for these projects.  

3. Safety Issues Update 

 No report. 

4. Financial Issues Update 

 General Manager Gray stated the Monthly Financial Reports include budget 
versus actual for the operating costs YTD.  He stated that the District can expect 
to have approximately 15% savings at the end of the year.  He also emphasized 
that 2015 staff may not be able to meet the 15% savings obtained in 2014. 

5. Delta Issues – Update on Regional Involvement 

 General Manager Gray provided a brief overview of the Delta issues related to 
Proposition 1 funding.   
 

6. Other 
 None. 

 
XII. Public Comment 

 SJWD Assistant General Manager Durkin thanked FOWD Board for listening to his 
comments. 

 
Director McRae closed the open session meeting at 9:31p.m. 
 
Director McRae called the closed session meeting to order at 9:42 p.m. 
 
 



Page 12 of 12 

XIII. Closed Session pursuant to government code section 54954.5 

1. Public Employee Performance Evaluation – General Manager’s performance 
evaluation and conference involving compensation 

 
Director McRae reopened the meeting to the public at 10:45 p.m. 
 

XIV. Report from closed session 

“It was unanimously determined that the General Manager performed at high level in all 
areas on behalf of the FOWD ratepayers in 2014.  Based on this evaluation of 2014 
performance, the General Manager’s annual salary will increase by 3.2% effective 
January 1, 2015.” 

Director McRae Motioned. 

Director Marx Seconded. 

Motion carried with the following votes:   Marx – aye, McRae – aye, Sarkovich – aye, 
Tafoya– aye, and Underwood – aye. 

 
XV. Public Comment 

 None. 

 
XVI. Adjournment 

With no further business to come before the Board, Director McRae adjourned the 
meeting at 10:52 p.m. 
 

 
The Board approved the preceding minutes on January 12, 2015 
 
________________________________   ___________________________ 
Tom R. Gray      Date  
General Manager/Board Secretary 
 


